





Cooperative Agreement 263-A-00-10-00026-00

LOTUS Scholarship Program, Quarterly Progress Report, FY2018, Quarter 4

Table of Contents

Executive Summary:	3
LOTUS Students Academic Performance	4
English Language Opportunities:	4
ITP	4
Intensive Summer English Program	5
Community Service and Extracurricular Activities	5
Updates on LOTUS Cohort 3 Alumni	5
Alumni and Current Students Facebook Group	6
Study Abroad Program	6
Re-entry Workshops	6
Leadership in Action Activities	7
Cohort 3 Final Retreat	7
The Eighth Annual LOTUS Student-led Leadership Workshop	7
Leadership in Action Program Assessment Tool	7
Career Component	8
Internships	8
Executive Summary	9
Assessments	
Career Counseling11	
Trainings13	
Lessons Learned/Success Stories	16
Conclusion	16

List of Tables

Table (1) Summary of the LOTUS Scholarship Program Results to-date	3
Table (2) Summary of the FY 2018 Q4 activities took place:	3
Table (3) Current Residency Graduates	4
Table (4) Cohort 3 ITP Results	4
Table (5) students' Community Service Hours and Leadership Roles	5
Table (C) Curaman 2010 Study Abroad and OST Students	,
Table (6) Summer 2018 Study Abroad and OST Students	t
Table (7) Attendance of Re-entry Session September 22, 2018	6

Executive Summary:

On May 4, 2010, IIE/Egypt was awarded the New Scholarship Program (renamed LOTUS Scholarship Program). The original award and subsequent modification in August 2011 provided funding for 150 scholarships. Two competitive, nationwide outreach, recruitment, and selection cycles (summer 2010 and summer 2011) resulted in 150 students being selected and joining LOTUS partner universities. On September 4, 2013, IIE/Egypt was awarded funding for 50 additional scholarships. The 50 Cohort 3 students completed the Bridge Year Program at the British University in Egypt (BUE) in June 2014 and began their undergraduate studies in September 2014. In June 2014, IIE was awarded funding for 50 additional scholarships. The 50 Cohort 4 students completed the Bridge Year Program at the British University in Egypt in May 2015. A total of 26 students were placed at BUE and 24 students were placed at the Arab Academy for Science, Technology and Maritime Transport (AASTMT). The number of LOTUS Cohort 4 students currently enrolled is 48 as one student was terminated for behavioral issues and the other one was terminated for failing to adhere to the Study Abroad Contract that stipulates full commitment to the LOTUS program without seeking opportunities to do internships, sponsored activities or continued education in the U.S. The students are currently in their fourth year of undergraduate studies. Please see Annex (1) for the Profile of LOTUS Students and Governorate Distribution

A total of **191** cohort 1, 2 and 3 students have graduated. One cohort 1 (female) and two cohort 2 students (females) left the program, and three cohort 1 and two cohort 2 students (3 females and 2 males) were terminated due to weak academic performance. **Two** students are currently doing their residencies and will continue to be supported by the program through October 2018 and June 2019 and one cohort 3 student will graduate in January 2019. Out of the 191 graduated students, 138 are employed.

Table (1) Summary of the LOTUS Scholarship Program Results to-date

Component	C1	C2	C3	C4	Total # of Students	F	M
Currently enrolled students			1	48	49	28	21
(65) Service Learning Projects	35	22	98	104	259*	134	125
All Graduates (including Residency Students)	96	46	49		191	102	89
Residency Students (current quarter)	2				2	0	2
**Employed Graduates	85	41			126	66	60
Study Abroad	45	20	28	41	134	71	63
Internships	105	59	90	26	280 ¹	140	140

^{*}Many students participated in multiple service learning projects

Table (2) Summary of the FY 2018 Q4 activities took place:

Activities	C1	F	М	C2	F	М	С3	F	М	C4	F	М	Total #	Number of Units
													of Charlente	
													Students	
LIA Life Skills Sessions							185	99	86				185	5
Self-Assessments							96	58	38				96	96
Career Counseling Sessions							45	26	19				45	45
Mentoring Sessions							94	52	42				94	94

_

^{**} The number of employed graduates reflects the number of students who got employed within one to two years of graduation.

¹ Some students have completed more than one internship.

LOTUS Students Academic Performance

Status of cohort 1 and 2 students. (142 graduates including 4 residency students)

As of this quarter, all students from Cohort 1 have officially graduated and IIE has received the transcripts. Three cohort 1 and one cohort 2 graduates are still receiving benefits from the program while they conduct their residency as per below. It is important to note that the student was scheduled to finish his residency in October 2018, however, he has experienced a variety of family and other challenges that have resulted in him needing additional time to finish his twelve-month residency.

Cohort 3

This reporting quarter marks the final months for the majority of the Cohort 3 students with 49 students graduating. One student should finish her final semester in January 2019. The student suffers from severe diabetes, which has been which has been a significant challenge to her ability to attend some classes and exams. IIE has worked with the student to ensure that she stay on track academically and has encouraged her to see a doctor regularly to monitor her health. Five cohort 3 students were appointed as Teachers Assistants in the IT & Computer Science at BUE

IIE received the spring 2018 semester grades for both cohort 3 and 4 as detailed below

BUE Cohort 3	AASTMT Cohort 3
 6 students earned GPAs of 3.50 - 3.99 6 students earned GPAs of 3.00 - 3.49 8 students earned GPAs of 2.50 - 2.99 	 14 students earned GPAs of 3.50 - 3.99 6 students earned GPAs of 3.00 - 3.49 1 student earned GPAs of 2.50 - 2.99
8 students earned GPAs of 2.00 – 2.49 BUE Cohort 4	AASTMT Cohort 4
 4 students earned GPAs of 4 6 students earned GPAs of 3.50 - 3.99 6 students earned GPAs of 3.00 - 3.49 8 students earned GPAs of 2.50 - 2.99 8 students earned GPAs of 2.00 - 2.49 	 11 students earned GPAs of 3.50 - 3.99 5 students earned GPAs of 3.00 - 3.49 5 students earned GPAs of 2.50 - 2.99

English Language Opportunities:

ITP

During this quarter, all cohort 3 students were required to sit for their final ITP examination prior to graduation. Two students were unable to sit for the exam One student travelled to Dubai to work right after finishing exams and did not inform any of the IIE team prior to her travel. The other student did not sit for the exam as she will continue for the fall semester and will take the test by the end of the semester. The iTP exam results are as follows:

Table (4) Cohort 3 ITP Results

Score Range	Female	Male	Total
550 or above	3	2	5
450 – 549	20	17	37
450 and below	2	3	5

IIE recognizes that the target of 90% of graduating students achieving an ITP score of 550 or above was not met. English language proficiency is a major challenge in LOTUS as reported in previous reports. Given that students graduating from public schools tend to have weak English proficiency and English is not a criterion for selection in the LOTUS Program, this is to be expected. Another contributing factor is field of specialization and utilization of English language. STEM fields for

example do not require students to do a lot of writing, which is key to improving proficiency. Science and technology students comprise a majority of Cohort 1 and 2 students and many are more proficient in technical terminology than general English. It is important to note that studying English during the regular academic year through supplemental English course offerings or independent study based on action plans is very challenging in light of the heavy course loads that students carry. Given the challenges of weak English language proficiency of public-school graduates that several USAID scholarship programs are witnessing, IIE recommends that future programs explore and incorporate a greater variety of English language enhancing opportunities.

Intensive Summer English Program

Recognizing the on-going challenges with English language proficiency detailed above, IIE proposed and received approval to send surplus funds on another two rounds of intensive English programming. During this quarter, IIE conducted the Intensive Summer English Program for cohort 3 and 4 students. The course was scheduled to take place during the period of August 25 – September 15, 2018 and was extended a few days due to a later start because of the Eid El Adha holiday and the Islamic New Year holiday. The objective of the Program, which was designed and implemented by the American University in Cairo was to enhance overall English language proficiency, with a particular emphasis on employability and preparation for the job market given that C3 students have already graduated and C4 students are in their final year at university. The students have taken a bridge year of English, as well as summer English and IBT test pre-courses during their undergraduate studies. Therefore, it was important that the offerors provided innovative and creative solutions to engage and maintain the interest of students.

Although the Intensive Summer English Program was optional and not mandatory and despite the fact that it was held in the summer after a busy year at university and internships, interest was very high. The final number of students who were accepted into the Program after meeting some internal criteria such as completion of at least one internship before the start of the program was 51 students - 15 cohort 3 and 36 cohort 4.

The Program ran six days a week, six hours a day with a one-hour lunch break for a total of 108 instructional hours. Students took a pre-training English placement test and were divided into four groups according to their scores. A post-training English test also took place on the last day of the program. IIE conducted program visits, the first one was on the first day of classes by LOTUS Program Director to set the context and talk about expectations and roles and responsibilities. There will be a comprehensive collective and individual final report submitted by AUC in October, details of which will be provided in the next QPR.

Community Service and Extracurricular Activities

During this reported quarter, students volunteered in the Egyptian Red Crescent, Um El Maamouna Charity for Care & Development, Skale-up Ventures, Center of Technology Development, and Center of Youth in South Sinai, MCW global, Think tank development, Coptic orphans, The Egyptian Beginning, Boys and Girls club, GEO at SUNY, Plattsburgh, International Culture Team, Enactus AAST Alexandria, AYB, Yvonne Richardson Community Center, Sunshine, El Keraza and churches.

LOTUS Cohort 4 students collectively were able to devote **1,035 hours** of their time this quarter to community service and **7** leadership roles were assumed.

Table (5) students' Community Service Hours and Leadership Roles

Community Service Hours	F	M	Leadership Roles	F	М
1,035	855	180	7	4	3

Updates on LOTUS Cohort 3 Alumni

This section of the report will provide quarterly updates on the employment status of the LOTUS Cohort 3 students. IIE maintains the connection alumni through regular emails, social media and surveys where they provide information on their current jobs and the job interviews they have undertaken. To date, 49 out of the 50 cohort 3 students graduated and the

remaining student will stay for the fall semester. As per the M&E matrix, the target is calculated based on the information extracted from a survey to document their employment status. Targets assume that 10% of the graduates will be employed within one year of their graduation and an additional 25% will be employed within two years of graduation. These estimates take into consideration that the majority of male graduates have compulsory military service after graduation and some chose to pursue graduate studies, which will delay their employment.

While cohort 3 students became alumni at the end of this quarter, we anticipate that we will experience similar challenges or limitations with collecting the graduates' data after most of them have either returned to their home governorates and/or are engaged either in pursuing their career paths, military service or family commitments. IIE will exert every effort to encourage alumni to be more responsive and provides guidance whenever the need arises.

A survey was designed and sent to the 49 alumni and 40 students answered the survey and reported their employability status. To-date, 13 out of the 49 LOTUS cohort 3 alumni are employed, 9 of whom are females and 4 are males. Sixteen students are planning to continue looking for opportunities to pursue graduate studies. Five students have been appointed as Teaching Assistants at BUE and six male graduates are doing their mandatory military service.

Alumni and Current Students Facebook Group

IIE started to track the opportunities posted in the Current Students and Alumni Facebook group in response to Recommendation No. (1) in the Mid-term Evaluation Report; "Build on and formalize the incipient network of LOTUS graduates and students to move toward the objective of establishing a nationwide network of young professionals. Although this is a long-term objective that will ultimately need to be self-sustaining, steps can be taken toward laying the groundwork and infrastructure in the remaining three years of the program". During FY2018, Q4, the following opportunities have been posted either by IIE team members or LOTUS alumni. Please see Annex (2) for the Opportunities Tracker

- 10 job opportunities in Cairo and Aswan;
- 14 internship and training opportunities in various companies including Tony Run, British Council, GIZ, and more
- One graduate program in Vodafone

Study Abroad Program

Current Opportunities:

During this reporting period, nine study abroad students were in the U.S. at various universities and completed a month-long internship. One student returned early because he was dismissed from the internship before completing the one-month requirement. In addition, IIE developed and received USAID approval for a four-week Nursing Observational Study Tour (OST) in summer 2018 with the objective of enhancing the nursing students' knowledge, exposing them to different types of health care environments, and motivating them to explore different nursing career paths and to enhance the nursing profession in Egypt. Twelve nursing students participated in the OST at the University of Kentucky in Lexington and Salve Regina University in Newport, Rhode Island. A detailed summary of the OST can be found in the *Students Highlight and Successes section of this report*. This marks the end of the study abroad component for the LOTUS program. All targets related to the study abroad indicators were achieved.

Re-entry Workshops

During this reporting period, a re-entry session was conducted on September 22, 2018 for 23 students who went on study abroad in 2018. Five students could not join the session but are scheduled to join the re-entry session in January 2019 with the LSP students. The session was conducted by IIE Consultant, IIE staff members attended the sessions to witness the progress of the students who passed through different stages of development.

Nine of the LOTUS cohorts 3 and 4 study abroad returnees participated in a pre-departure orientation and a study abroad program orientation for LSP students. They shared their study abroad experiences, assisted in facilitating the activities and answered students' questions.

Leadership in Action Activities

Cohort 3 Final Retreat

IIE received feedback from LOTUS Cohort 1 and 2 alumni regarding the need to prepare LOTUS students for life after LOTUS. As such, IIE designed a final team building retreat for Cohort 3 students based on the feedback received from alumni and input received from Cohort 3. The retreat took place over the weekend of July 20 at the Intercontinental Semiramis Hotel.

The retreat began with a panel discussion with LOTUS alumni moderated by IIE consult who asked the alumni a set of predetermined questions regarding their transition to post-LOTUS life and alumni, in turn, shared their experiences and advice with the soon-to-be graduates. The second day of the retreat consisted of session led by LOTUS alumni on what to expect in the business environment and a session on scholarship opportunities for graduate studies. On the third day of the retreat, the facilitator educated students on work legalities including employee rights and responsibilities and contracts. The final day consisted of a session on work-life balance. .

The Eighth Annual LOTUS Student-led Leadership Workshop

IIE met with the student organizers on September 5 to discuss the status of the planning. IIE felt that the students have made progress and are well-prepared in comparison to the organization committees of past workshops. Unfortunately, they had to put some of the major tasks on hold as BUE has not yet confirmed that it can host the Workshop on the requested dates. IIE continues to follow up with the University.

Leadership in Action Program Assessment Tool

This quarter, IIE disseminated the Leadership in Action Program Assessment Tool to Cohort 3 as a post-program assessment. IIE shared the findings for their first completed assessment in the FY2017/Q2 report submitted to USAID.

The assessment consists of two sections: 1) a section for students to assess their leadership skills and attributes which are linked to leadership competencies that IIE has identified, and 2) for students to provide their input and feedback on the Leadership in Action Program's content, delivery, logistics, evaluation tools, and policies. In addition, the section asks student to assess whether or not they apply the skills gained to their real life (and if so how), the clarity of roles and responsibilities (i.e. do they know what each LIA team member was responsible for; do they understand what their responsibilities are towards the LIA Program), and communication between IIE and students.

Pre- and post-test data were collected from the participants. Only participants with both pre and post tests were included in the analysis (N=45), while the remaining (5) who completed either a pre-test or a post-test were excluded. 80% of the students who took the survey (38 students, 19 females and 17 males) reported a change in one or more of the five leadership attributes included in the survey. A summary of the significant results is included below.

In reviewing and analyzing the responses for the nine Cohort 3 students who did not feel that there was a change in their leadership skills, IIE was not surprised to see that for about half of the students, there was a correlation between varying levels of participation and perceived questionable commitment to the program and their results. However, IIE is surprised by the results for the remaining students as they have demonstrated a sense of commitment, responsibility and participation in the Leadership in Action component of the Program. It is not possible to make assumptions on why this is the case without seeking clarity from these students. As such, IIE will lead focus groups with them to solicit their input as

part of our efforts to continually assess and ensure that activities are as beneficial as possible to students. This goes in line with one of the recommendations of LOTUS Mid-term Evaluation "IIE will monitor the quality and utility of the sessions in terms of student skills and feedback on presentation. Develop a method or rubric to measure learning in the sessions and topics so as to reduce their total number" and IIE plan of action to Conduct a series of focus group discussions with alumni to solicit additional qualitative input and discuss needs and interests in greater depth. A summary of the significant results is included below.

Part I: Self-Assessment

According to the students' responses, there was an overall improvement of 32.45% in all leadership attributes. The top three attributes with the most changes were the following: communicates effectively (8.08% improvement), the ability to relate to/motive others (6.89% improvement), and the ability to think strategically (6.44% improvement). In analyzing the results, IIE noticed that there was a decrease in students' participation in community service. IIE believes that this decrease is most likely due to their demanding schedules and increased responsibilities as senior students.

Part II: Leadership in Action Program Assessment

The following are highlights of the significant results for the Leadership in Action Program Assessment:

Content:

> Students identified the following as the top beneficial LIA activities: team building retreats, annual student-led workshops, Helwa ya Baladi trip to Aswan, Communication Styles session, CV Writing session, Job Hunt Tools session, and Interview Skills session.

Skills/Values gained through the LIA Program:

> Students identified the following as the top skills/values gained: self-awareness, teamwork, problem-solving, decision making, communication skills, and responsibility.

Application to real life:

- > 97.9 indicated that they apply the skills/values gained through the LIA Program to their lives. Examples of the top applied skills/values are teamwork, problem-solving, self-awareness, and decision making.
- > 100% of respondents indicated that the LIA Program makes them different than their peers.

Upcoming Leadership in Action Activities

- Cohort 4 Individual Sessions
- LOTUS Diwan: Dialogue on Gender
- Stress Management Session with Dr. Hani Henry
- Eighth Annual LOTUS Student-Led Leadership Workshop

Career Component

Internships

During this reporting period, IIE secured the following documentation for internships:

LOTUS SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM, QUARTERLY REPORT, FY2018, QUARTER 4

- Cohort 3: 35 internships; 25 students (13 females and 12 males)
- Cohort 4: 11 internships; 10 students (5 females and 5 males)

The internships were sourced by the students, IIE, AMIDEAST, and the universities. Internships include:

- Audi Bank
- Petrojet
- Unilever
- Beit Al Karma Consulting
- Xceed
- KPMG
- Shark and Shrimp Marketing Agency

Details regarding the internships sourced and secured by AMIDEAST can be found below. Now that 49 students of Cohort 3 have completed the LOTUS Program, the total number of one-month internships with secured documentation is 90. There are additional students who have completed internships but were delayed in receiving the documentation. These students continue to send the documentation as received to IIE and AMIDEAST.

In light of Cohort 3 students completing of the Program, it is important to note that the internship component continues to be a challenge. IIE and AMIDEAST have identified the following reasons thus far:

- The overall internship culture in Egypt. The internship culture in Egypt is still developing and presents various barriers. Most established internship programs are with multinational companies. These programs are very competitive and often require a strong command of written and spoken English. Many employers do not see the value in having interns and see interns as a burden rather than an opportunity to invest in potential employees. In some cases, there is also a misconception about what an internship consists of particularly because the word in Arabic is "training". As such, both students and employers often use the term and its meaning interchangeably.
- Students' Expectations. Through working on this component with students, IIE discovered that many of them have unrealistic expectations of where they want to/should intern and that internships need to be in their field of study/interest. IIE has been working to change this mindset and explain to them that while it is ideal to place students in internships with their preferred employer and field, there is a value in participating in any internship because of the experience, transferable skills, exposure, and network created.

IIE and AMIDEAST will continue discussions to reflect and debrief on the internship process in order to identify lessons learned and what changes, if any, need to be made for Cohort 4.

(Note: this section of the report is prepared by AMIDEAST)

Executive Summary

During this quarter, AMIDEAST successfully planned and carried out the fifth round of career counseling sessions for Cohort 3 and the Career Counseling Club. During this reporting period, AMIDEAST also implemented trainings including Job Hunt Tools, Positive Attitude at Work, Delegation, and Corporate Etiquette. In addition to the counseling, training, and Career Counseling Club, AMIDEAST has started to place Cohort 3 and Cohort 4 students in summer internship opportunities. Please see the below table for more details on the activities that took place.

Activities Implemented this Quarter

Activity	Date of Implementation	Outcomes/no. of students	Remarks
Career Assessment: TOEIC Post-Program Test of English for International Communication	 BUE Cohort 3: June 21, June 24 and July 20, 2018 AASTMT Cohort 3: June 24, and July 20, 2018 	 BUE Cohort 3: 28/29 AASTMT Cohort 3: 19/21 	Although this activity was conducted in quarter three, AMIDEAST is reporting it in quarter four since reports of this assessment are generated in the current quarter.
Career Counseling Session: Career Planning	 BUE Cohort 3: July 21-22,2018 AASTMT Cohort 3: July 22' 2018 	 BUE Cohort 3: 3/29 AASTMT Cohort 3: 2/21 	Forty-three students previously took this career counseling session during the last quarter.
Career Mentoring: Career Counseling Club	 BUE Cohort 3: July 21, 2018 AASTMT Cohort 3: July 22' 2018 	 BUE Cohort 3: 25/29 AASTMT Cohort 3: 12/21 	
Training: Positive Attitude at Work	• AASTMT and BUE Cohort 3: August 11, 2018	 BUE Cohort 3: 9/29 AASTMT Cohort 3: 4/21 	
Training: Delegation	• AASTMT and BUE Cohort 3: August 12, 2018	 BUE Cohort 3: 10/29 AASTMT Cohort 3: 6/21 	
Training: Corporate Etiquette	AASTMT and BUE Cohort 3: August 13, 2018	 BUE Cohort 3: 8/29 AASTMT Cohort 3: 5/21 	
Training: Job Hunt Tools	• BUE Cohort 3: August 14, 2018	• BUE Cohort 3: 10/29	
Career Counseling: Internship Feedback	AASTMT and BUE Cohort 3: August 15 – August 29, 2018	 BUE Cohort 3: 23/27 AASTMT Cohort 3: 15/21 	
Career Counseling: Roadmap	• BUE Cohort 3: August 27,2018	BUE Cohort 3: 2/2	
Summer Internships	AASTMT and BUE Cohort 3 and Cohort 4: July- September, 2018	 BUE Cohort 3: 6/29 BUE Cohort 4: 1/26 AASTMT Cohort 3: 2/21 AASTMT Cohort 4: 3/22 	Fourteen students started their summer internships in July and August 2018.
Career Assessment: Post Program Survey		 BUE Cohort 3: 28/29 AASTMT Cohort 3: 21/21 	One student did not fill the post program survey.

Challenges Faced During Implementation

Challenges	Action Taken
Some students did not show up for several career activities due to various post-academic responsibilities including internships and applying for military service.	Those cases were communicated to IIE. AMIDEAST decided to take into consideration ending the program earlier for the next work plan 2018/2019 to guarantee that all students will attend and benefit from all
Nada Rady Alexandria Project Specialists resigned	activities. IIE was officially informed and AMIDEAST is in the
from her post.	process of appointing a new Project Specialist for

AMIDEAST Career Component Activities

Assessments

TOEIC Post-Program Test of English for International Communication:

AMIDEAST implemented the internationally recognized TOEIC assessment for the second time as planned at the end of the year for Cohort 3 students. The TOEIC provides an accurate indication of participant language improvement within a business environment, especially that most of the training and activities were delivered in in both English and Arabic. Assessment results could be useful for students when added to their CVs prior to applying for any internships or job opportunities. The assessments were given at AMIDEAST's offices in Cairo. The majority of the students took the assessment on the originally scheduled dates with a few exceptions of students who took the assessment on other dates due to various personal reasons, while a few others did not show up. Reports with their results have been sent to Cohort 3 students.

Outcomes:

• 47 out of 50 students took the TOEIC assessment.

Post-Program Survey

The aim of the post-program survey is to document the change in students' perception of their knowledge, skills, and abilities in order to document student growth in knowledge about the labor market, employer expectations, personal skills, interests, and the process of finding opportunities as well as applying for jobs. The post-program survey provides AMIDEAST with insights about which activities added value to the students' experience and which were least beneficial. The feedback provided will help AMIDEAST to make any necessary modifications to the 2018/2019 work plan in collaboration with IIE.

Outcomes:

• 49 out of 50 students took the TOEIC assessment.

Challenges Faced During Implementation

Challenges	Action Taken
One student did not fill the assessment - Esraa Ahmed Omar	The case was communicated by AMIDEAST to IIE.
Mohamed, Cohort 3, BUE, is unreachable.	

Career Counseling

Career Planning

All of the exercises are designed to help students examine their current status and plan their careers, from the internship to beginning their career to making a career shift altogether. The purpose of this basic exercise was to encourage students to think about their potential direction in terms of career and consider some of the key issues that may affect their progress. This one-hour appointment introduced students to a basic model for career planning. During this appointment, students explored a framework for considering their career options and specific actions that they need to take to get there and learned about available resources to support their efforts.

Forty-three students already took this career counseling session during the previous quarter; therefore, only 7 students rescheduled for this quarter to take the fourth step.

Outcomes:

- BUE: 3 Cohort 3 students attended.
- AASTMT: 2 Cohort 3 students attended.

Evaluation and students' feedback:

- "I start to focus exactly on what I need to improve my skills to qualify me for my career life. For example, I start to do
 web sites using different language and tools to help me as a reference when I apply on new job as web developer."-,
 Cohort 3, BUE.
- 75% of BUE Cohort 3 stated that they "strongly agree" that they understood the importance of career planning.

Challenges Faced During Implementation

Challenges	Action Taken
A Cohort 3 female student, BUE, is unreachable.	AMIDEAST tried to contact her via phone calls, emails, and WhatsApp with no reply from her side. This case was reported to IIE.
A Cohort 3 female student, AASTMT, was rescheduled on July 22, 2018. She was a no show.	AMIDEAST reported this case to IIE.

Career Counseling Club:

The Career Counseling Club focuses on group counseling, such as discussing internships, challenges, solutions, and successes. During the club that took place on July 21, 2018 for Cohort 3, BUE, and on July 22, 2018 for Cohort 3, AASTMT, the career counselor felt that the students were eager to discuss current job market challenges and as such focused on this topic in order to meet the students' needs. In addition, he discussed with them potential solutions to solve this issue. The outcome of this Career Counseling Club positively affected students due to shared experiences.

Outcomes:

- **BUE:** 25/29 Cohort 3 students attended.
- AASTMT: 12/21 Cohort 3 students attended.

Evaluation and students' feedback:

- "What I found the most valuable that we discussed difficulties which we face to join a job. It was useful because it answered many of my questions and facilitate my thoughts."-, Cohort 3, BUE.
- 25% of BUE Cohort 3 rated the club as 'excellent' for an overall rating while 25% of the students rated it 'very good.'
- "Overall it was so valuable as we talked about our fears from the work environment and how to overcome it and be well prepared for hunting a job."-, Cohort 3, AASTMT.
- 20% of the AASTMT Cohort 3 rated the club as 'excellent' for an overall rating while 40% of students rated it 'very good' to the same statement.

Career Counseling: Internship Feedback

This was the final step of the career counseling journey. Through this activity the Career Counselor discussed with the students their internship experience, including the new skills or perspectives gained. Based on this discussion, the career counselor taught students how to link the outcome of the internship into the world of work. Moreover, students revisited

their goals and reflected on whether the internship helped in the pursuit of their goals or changed them altogether. Students also reflected on the least beneficial experiences from their internships. Reflecting on the least beneficial experiences helped them to fine-tune and adjust their career goals.

Career Counseling: Roadmap

AMIDEAST customized an alternative final Career Counseling step named Road Map for students who did not have the chance to participate in any internships. During the session, counselors discussed with students the reasons why they did not pursue any internships before, what skills they do not have and how to obtain them and a roadmap for their career in their upcoming period.

This session took place online since students were back in their governorates.

Outcomes for Career Counseling: Internship Feedback:

BUE: 23/27 Cohort 3 students attended.

• AASTMT: 15/21 Cohort 3 students attended.

Outcomes for Career Counseling: Road Map:

• BUE: 2/2 Cohort 3 students attended.

Evaluation and students' feedback:

- "My next step in my career will be engaging in a master's program after finishing my Lazord fellowship program"-, Cohort 3, BUE.
- 25% of BUE Cohort 3 rated this activity as 'strongly agree' for understanding the importance of internships, while 45% rated is as 'agree' to the same statement.
- "What I like the most about this career counseling step is that it helped me to see another prospective towards my career like the skills that I should focus on "Cohort 3, AASTMT.
- 35% of AASTMT Cohort 3 rated this activity as 'strongly agree' for understanding the importance of internships, 45% while the students rated it as 'agree' to the same statement.

Challenges Faced During Implementation

Challenges	Action Taken	
Ten students were absent from this final career counseling step	AMIDEAST tried to reach them through mobile phone, emails, and WhatsApp. These cases were reported to IIE.	

Trainings

Closing Career Camp:

AMIDEAST decided to arrange for the remaining training sessions for Cohort 3 in the form of a camp after the students finished their final exams and project submissions so that they could have time to focus on career activities. AMIDEAST originally proposed trainings on team work and leadership in the proposal submitted to IIE, however, after having discussions with IIE and learning that LOTUS students were already exposed to these topics, AMIDEAST proposed three new training topics as an alternative: Positive Attitude at Work, Delegation, and Corporate Etiquette. Since it was the closing camp and

the students' graduating year, the three new training topics were chosen after reviewing all training topics for Cohort 3. AMIDEAST worked on a customized training curriculum not only to help the students in their first year at work but also to recap on all previous trainings taken by IIE through the leadership program.

Positive Attitude at Work

One of the most important keys to success is having a positive attitude at work. This training taught students that having a positive attitude is a little more than just keeping a smile on their faces – it's having optimistic thoughts. Having a positive attitude will help students particularly in their first year of work.

Outcomes:

BUE: 9/29 Cohort 3 students attended.

• AASTMT: 4/21 Cohort 3 students attended.

Challenges Faced During Implementation

Challenges	Action Taken
Although AMIDEAST arranged for the sessions after the students' completed their academic responsibilities as a way to help ensure their level of commitment, attendance was still a challenge.	AMIDEAST communicated all cases to IIE by emails.

Delegation:

Being able to let go and delegate tasks to others can be one of the hardest tasks. Students might get pressured and decide to do the task by on their own. They might think that explaining a task to someone else might not be worth the time and effort, and that they might not know how to tackle the task. This training focuses on what delegation is and how to delegate effectively and efficiently.

Outcomes:

• BUE: 10/29 Cohort 3 students attended.

AASTMT: 6/21 Cohort 3 students attended.

Corporate Etiquette:

After graduation, the ability to handle oneself properly today can sometimes outweigh even one's technical skills. If students know what to do, when to do it, and how to do it with grace and style, they will have a competitive edge in their careers. This training taught students the importance of business etiquette as well as equipping students with business etiquette and protocol knowledge needed to perform in a corporate culture with confidence, know-how, grace, and efficiency in their first year at work.

Outcomes:

• **BUE:** 8/29 Cohort 3 students attended.

AASTMT: 5/21 Cohort 3 students attended.

Evaluation and students' feedback:

• "The Camp was more than perfect, is benefited me a lot."-, Cohort 3.

• 61% of BUE and AASTMT Cohort 3 rated this activity as 'Excellent' for an overall rating of the Closing Career Camp while 23% of students rated is as 'agree' to the same statement.

Job Hunt Tools:

The first step in a successful job search project is the preparation stage. Students focused on analyzing their professional environment, outlining their job search objective, and linking it to their long-term career objective. During the preparation stage, students developed their customized job search toolkit including the list of their skills, accomplishment stories, strengths and weaknesses, competencies, and personal values. They then determined their job search preferences and target market and built their communication strategy. The training took place on August 14, 2018 for Cohort 3 BUE students at t'he Cataract Hotel.

Outcomes:

- BUE Cohort 3: 10/29 students attended the training.
- Five students showed interest in attending job hunt tools training from AASTMT again to get more benefit.

Evaluation and students feedback:

- "I already paid more attention to my linked in account and my CV. I will try take make use of any event where I can meet new people and make connections."-, Cohort 3, BUE.
- 25% of BUE Cohort 3 rated it as 'excellent' for an overall rating of the workshop, while 37% rated it as 'agree' to the same statement.

Challenges Faced During Implementation

Challenges	Action Taken
Nineteen students were absent from this training.	These cases were communicated to IIE.

Summer Internships

AMIDEAST contacted a wide number of employers and we reached a final agreement with roughly 75 NGOs and companies to give priority to LOTUS students during the interviewing phase for any summer internships they have. Also, AMIDEAST reached a final agreement with Misr El Kheir to provide summer internships for our LOTUS students without interviews however many students excused themselves from this opportunity. No internships were provided to the 20 students who were studying abroad from Cohort 4.

For Cohort 3 and 4, after the second Career Counseling step - Internship Preparation - and third Career counseling step - Networking and Mapping - students were taught how to search for internships and increase their own network by themselves.

Outcomes:

- BUE Cohort 3: 6/29 students were successfully placed and started their internship.
- BUE Cohort 4: 1/26 students were successfully placed and started their internship.
- AASTMT Cohort 3: 3/21 students were successfully placed and started their internship.
- AASTMT Cohort 4: 4/22 students were successfully placed and started their internship.

Challenges	Action Taken	
AMIDEAST tried to offer internships for almost all	AMIDEAST communicated each case to IIE and on	
students, however, the number of students who pursed	our last meeting dated September 20, 2018 IIE	

Challenges	Action Taken
internships secured by AMIDEAST is low. There is a variety of reasons for this outcome including some students not being a good fit for the given opportunity they applied for, some students' weak level of English proficiency, and some students' lack of interest in the opportunities.	guaranteed that they will support AMIDEAST in the coming quarter. IIE has requested to schedule a meeting with AMIDEAST to debrief over the internship process and the various challenges faced in order to see if there are is anything that could be done differently for Cohort 4.
In addition to the above challenges in securing internships, 20 students from BUE Cohort 4 were studying abroad over the summer and as such could not participate in summer internships.	In coordination with IIE, AMIDEAST is working with a number of employers to avail a winter internship for the students.

Lessons Learned/Success Stories

- A Cohort 3 student, BUE, applied for a summer internship at Makouk startup provided by AMIDEAST and the
 employer was very impressed with his performance during the interview. He was offered a full-time job
 opportunity.
- IIE has been very supportive, especially with following up with students. The on-going clear communication and open channels have kept proceedings effective.

Conclusion

Upcoming activities for the next quarter:

- Training: Networking Cohort 4
- Training: Problem Solving Cohort 4
- Training: Business Writing Course Cohort 4
- Mentoring: Recruitment Online Platform Session Cohort 4

LOTUS SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM, QUARTERLY REPORT, FY2018, QUARTER 4					